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Date:   December 8, 2017 

To:   All bidders 

Title:   Digital Video and Photography Services 

Reference No.:  2017-RFP-62 

From:   Wei Chen (Tim), Purchasing Agent, ext. 3470 

 

Note: 

Niagara Region has determined that it is necessary to provide additional information 
relating to the above referenced Request for Proposal. 
 
This addendum forms an integral part of the above referenced Request for Proposal.  
Such addenda may contain important information, including significant changes to the 
above referenced Request for Proposal. 
 
In the Form of Proposal (Appendix B), bidders should confirm their receipt of all 
addenda by setting out the number of each addendum in the space provided. 

Addendum No. 1 

Questions and Answers 

Q1. Appendix D spells out the themes for each of the video deliverables that 
are required. Are the videos required in Quarter 1 through 3 based on a 
sole/single interview for each one? Would each of those videos rely on the 
taped interview (edited down) to tell the story? Or would the interview 
intersperse with pre-recorded voice over? And would each of the videos 
also require full editing, ie cover video / b-roll and imagery edited onto the 
interviews along with graphics and animation? 

 
A1. Q1 video content will be mostly story telling (explanatory, informational) videos 

with animations and voice overs – the b-roll from 1 video may very well be used 
to support others and make new videos and compilations in Q1 through Q4. Most 
interviews and success stories will be 1 person at a time but we will work with the 
Successful Proponent to arrange for multiple single interviews to be help 
together. Interview style videos can be combined with animations and voice 
overs.  

 
Q2 video content will be a mix between the above and interview style interviews 
to showcase “success stories”  
Q3 video content will be almost all success stories and interview style videos.  

http://www.niagararegion.ca/
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Q2. Are the videos required in Quarter 4 based on one key interview per video? 

Or a compilation of interview clips and scripted voice over and b-roll 
imagery?  

 
A2. Q4 will be a mix of compilations, success stories, and videos to help highlight 

each community within the region.  
 

The hope is that by Quarter 4, we have the majority of the video that we need 
and the majority of the work will be on editing and making compilations to meet 
the deliverables.  Interviews will still be required if not all video was captured 
earlier. 
 

Q3. There is mention in appendix D that all photos are to be delivered in RAW 
format. Would you like the us to edit the photos and send them in a high 
quality jpeg as well as send the RAW files?  

 
A3. Yes, we would like the edited .jpg to use, and also have access to and ownership 

of, all final and Raw files. 
 

Q4. It mentions that there are quarterly deliverable for video and photo but 
there is only a listing for what is to be delivered for video, not for photo. 
Will there be a list of content to be delivered for photo or will it be 
discussed?  

 
A4. The schedule list of video and photography requirements will be discussed with 

the winning proponent. The quarterly schedule is proposed but flexible to change 
as long as video and photography needs align with the web development and 
marketing schedule. 

 
Q5. It is mentioned that the RFP is only an estimate of the work and there is a 

chance of addenda, will there be additional time given to complete new 
deliverable requirements? 

 
A5. We will attempt to ensure that all potential proponents have sufficient time to 

complete their proposal after issuing an addenda. 
 
Q6. Would you like the appendix B forms scanned and attached to all 6 hard 

copies of the proposal or just one main copy delivered in a separate sealed 
envelope as required for the pricing forms? 

 
A6. Please attached Appendix B Forms with original signatures to all 6 hard copies 

 
Q7. Would you like full resumes and bios of all the service team or only 

highlighted points and relevant experiences? 
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A7. Please provide an organizational chart, roles, biographies, and/or resumes for 
the proposed Service team. It need NOT be exhaustive, but should provide 
details as to the relevant experience of the team and outline who is responsible 
for what. 

 
Q8. Are the quarterly deliverable times hard set or negotiable? The reason we 

ask is because a sudden change of subject availability or schedule 
conflicts with businesses / institutions we are filming with may effect the 
deliverable dates set out in this RFP. 

 
A8. The quarterly deliverable schedule is still a draft but should provide a framework 

for the kinds of video content we are interest in. We will work with the chosen 
proponent to finalize the schedule understanding that there are some elements 
that Are firm and must be complete to meet the website development schedule, 
specifically for Q1. 

 
Q9. It is mentioned that you will be potentially putting these videos on 

Television. Different TV stations usually have different deliverable 
standards to play on their system. If you fully plan on getting these videos 
on a broadcast network, we would need to know what station and what 
their deliverable standards are. It is important to know as this will 
determine how we would shoot and export each video. 

 
A9. There are no plans at this time for specific TV networks. 
 
Q10. Do we need to get permits for each location we are shooting at? Will the 

Region assist in anyway with regards to location management? 
 
A10. We do not anticipate needing permits for location shoots. Should this become a 

requirement, it will be at the expense of the Region outside of this RFP. The 
Regional project manager will assist will location management, scheduling, and 
providing people to interview. 

 
Q11. On page 6 of 33 in the RFP, Question 5. Work Plan - it says to include costs 

associated with each phase, but on page 5 it states: “The hard copies of 
the Pricing Form (Appendix C) and any other information in respect of 
pricing must be separated from the rest of the proposal and enclosed in a 
separate envelope marked “Pricing Envelope”. So, does Question 5 on 
Page 6, mean to include general costs, such as “pre-production costs” and 
“post-production costs”, since all pricing must be kept separate? 

 
A11. Please indicate how you would like the budget to be allocated to you as part of 

your work plan, as a percentage (%).  
 

In the work plan, Please do not disclose the price. Please include it separately as 
indicated on page 9, section 1.8.3. Please use the pricing table as indicated in 
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Appendix C – Pricing Form, to outline the costs associated with each phase of 
the project. 

 
Q12. On page 7 of 33 in the RFP, question 9. Examples of Work - how are we to 

provide these video examples? Would you like hard copies of these 
examples on the USB? Would you like links to copies of the examples 
online? Will they be viewed, or is this just a written example? 

 
A12. We will allow the bidders to determine the best way to share their work. Videos 

can be provided by USB key or links to online content. Please be aware that 
these videos will be viewed and scored as part of the evaluation process. Ensure 
that your videos are provided in a format that they can be viewed. Any broken 
links or unresponsive media will obtain a failing score. 

 
Q13. On page 32 or 33, 3. A. No Bid Deposit, uncertified cheque, or financial 

security not an original (e.g. a photocopy or a facsimile of a financial 
security). What does this mean in relation to our business? Do we need to 
provide a certified cheque once approved? Or does this need to be 
included in the RFP? 

 
A13. No deposit or Financial Security is required. Please disregard. 
 
Q14. Would you not prefer fully-edited, hi-res photos rather than raw images? Or 

are you intending to edit the raw photos yourself? 
 
A14. Please refer to answer #3 
 
Q15. Will there be talking points provided for each video topic? 
 
A15. Yes, we would like to work with the chosen proponent to create a cohesive story 

board, scripts, and talking points for interviews. The region will identify those to 
be interview and will work with the chosen proponent to determine location, 
scheduling, and concepts. The goal will be to try and do as much video shooting 
in groups to provide video that can be used in multiple videos. 

 
Q16. When/how will budget allocation be received? 
 
A16. Please refer to answer #11 
 
Q17. Appendix F – what financial security/certified cheque/bid deposit is 

required? There is no outlined cost in the RFP. 
 
A17. Please Refer to answer #13 
  
Q18. Are we responsible for obtaining site permits for the locations? 
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A18. We do not anticipate needing permits for location shoots. Should this become a 
requirement, it will be at the expense of the Region outside of this RFP. The 
Regional project manager will assist will location management, scheduling, and 
providing people to interview. 

 
Q19. Have you already been in contact with locations and interviewees? 
 
A19. We do have people identified whom we wish to interview for video but people 

have not yet been contacted. We have also not lined up locations for video at this 
time but do have assets identified to be part of the videos. 

 
Q20. Have you already scheduled shooting dates at locations and interviewees? 
 
A20. No, but we will arrange this with the Successful Proponent. 
 
Q21. Is a personal vehicle and insurance policy sufficient for the auto-insurance 

requirement on this project? The production is planning to drive personal 
vehicles to locations and set based on mileage being covered. 

 
A21. If the Successful Proponent requires the use of a vehicle to transport people or 

equipment, proof of insurance meeting the requirements needs to be provided.  
Proof of automobile insurance will not be required if the Supplier provides a 
signed letter stating that they do not own or lease vehicles. 

 
Q22. Outside of skype and teleconference calls, how often will 1-1 in person 

meetings will there be? 
 
A22. On the onset of the contract, it is expected that there will be daily contact, moving 

to weekly and then perhaps monthly person to person meetings. Much can be 
done via email, phone, and skype and that is acceptable as long as in person 
meetings can be arranged as required. 

 
Q23. Examples of work. The RFP asks the respondent to provide examples of 

work from four (4) previous clients from established private firms or 
government agencies, (two (2) private and two (2) government preferred). 
Our question is can a non-for-profit organization be classified as a 
government example of work. Please clarify what government example 
does and does not include. 

 
A23. For the sake of this RFP, Government may include any professional organization 

that is managed by a board of directors or council, such as non-profit 
corporations, associations, charities, municipalities, federal or provincially funded 
organizations or first nations. 

 
Q24. Under the work plan requirements there is a mention of costs associated 

with each phase. And in the Appendix D under the methodology there is a 
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mention of budget break down. And in Appendix C there is a pricing form.  
We are a little unclear on the expectation here for budget details  First off, 
are we to provide pricing in the the Work Plan section of the RFP. Second, 
do these line items align with pricing form in Appendix C. Third, if they are 
different are you looking for a quarterly breakdown or a line by line budget 
breakdown in the work plan? Please clarify the requirements for budget 
breakdown in the RFP. 

 
A24. Please refer to answer #11. 
 
Q25. Given the wide scope of services sought after in both the Digital 

Photo/Video and Creative Services RFPs, will one vendor be selected for 
each complete RFP, or is it possible that multiple vendors may be selected 
for different deliverables within each RFP? 

 
A25. There are currently 2 RFP’s  

https://www.niagararegion.ca/business/tenders/default.aspx  
(2017-RFP-61 | Due Dec 14, 2017) - Creative Services 
(2017-RFP-62 | Due Dec 14, 2017) - Video and Photography 

 
The individual components within Each RFP will not be broken down separately 
and handed out to multiple proponents. 
 
One Successful Proponent will be chosen for each RFP. It is possible that one 
Proponent may be successful in being awarded both RFP’s both, but only if that 
potential proponent is successful at achieving the best individual score for each 
RFP. 

 
Q26. For instance, there may be one vendor best-suited for translation and 

another best-suited for the design work itself. Once vendor may be best 
suited for video, and another for photo. 

 
A26. The goal is to find the Proponent that is best suited for websites and the best 

Proponent suited for video. It would be ideal if we could find one Proponent that 
can do everything but we are not willing to sacrifice quality for convenience. Each 
potential bidder is encourage to put forward the best submission possible to 
deliver on all tasks. 

 
If a potential bidder needs to support their service team with sub contractors, for 
portions of the work to complete the project (such as translation) that is 
completely acceptable, as long as those outsourced components are identified 
as part of the bid requirements. 

 
Q27. Will a preference be given to vendors that can complete all work in all RFPs 

in-house? 
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A27. Preference will be given to the best overall team to deliver on each individual 
RFP. In house vs sub contractors is less important than the overall quality of the 
team. 

  
2017-RFP-62 
End of Addendum No. 1 
No. of Pages:  7 
Date Issued:  December 8, 2017 
 
cc: File, as referenced above. 
 Project Manager:  Dave Raymond 
 

End of Addendum 


